
  

AGENDA 
STAYTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Monday, April 20, 2015 
Stayton Community Center 

400 W. Virginia Street 
Stayton, Oregon  97383 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER   7:00 PM   Mayor Porter 
 
FLAG SALUTE 
 
ROLL CALL/STAFF INTRODUCTIONS 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS – PLEASE READ CAREFULLY 
Items not on the agenda but relevant to City business may be discussed at this meeting. Citizens are encouraged to 
attend all meetings of the City Council to insure that they stay informed. Agenda items may be moved forward if a 
Public Hearing is scheduled. 
a. Additions to the agenda 
b. Declaration of Ex Parte Contacts, Conflict of Interest, Bias, etc.  
 
PRESENTATIONS/COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
Request for Recognition:  If you wish to address the Council, please fill out a green “Request for Recognition” form.  
Forms are on the table at the back of the room. Recommended time for presentation is 10 minutes. Recommended 
time for comments from the public is 3 minutes. 
a. Child Abuse Prevention Month Proclamation 
b. K9 Run Update by Sargent Charlie Button 
c. Municipal Court Update by Judge Jonathan Clark 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 
a. March 16, 2015 City Council Minutes 
b. April 6, 2015 City Council Work Session Minutes 
 
Purpose of the Consent Agenda: 
In order to make more efficient use of meeting time, resolutions, minutes, bills, and other items which are routine in 
nature and for which no debate is anticipated, shall be placed on the Consent Agenda.  Any item placed on the 
Consent Agenda may be removed at the request of any council member prior to the time a vote is taken.  All 
remaining items of the Consent Agenda are then disposed of in a single motion to adopt the Consent Agenda.  This 
motion is not debatable.  The Recorder to the Council will then poll the council members individually by a roll call 
vote.  If there are any dissenting votes, each item on the consent Agenda is then voted on individually by roll call 
vote.  Copies of the Council packets include more detailed staff reports, letters, resolutions, and other supporting 
materials.  A citizen wishing to review these materials may do so at Stayton City Hall, 362 N. Third Avenue, Stayton, 
or the Stayton Public Library, 515 N. First Avenue, Stayton. 

The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the hearing 
impaired or other accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at least 48 hours prior to the 
meeting. If you require special accommodations contact Deputy City Recorder Alissa Angelo at (503) 769-3425.

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 1 of 3 
April 20, 2015 



  

PUBLIC HEARING – None 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
Resolution No. 925, Storm Water SDC       Action 
a. Staff Report – Dan Fleishman 
b. Council Deliberation 
c. Council Decision 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Resolution No. 931, OPRD Local Government Grant     Action  
a. Staff Report – Lance Ludwick 
b. Council Deliberation 
c. Council Decision 
 
STAFF/COMMISSION REPORTS  
Finance Director’s Report – Christine Shaffer     Informational 
a. March 2015 Monthly Finance Department Report 
 

Police Chief’s Report – Rich Sebens       Informational 
a. March 2015 Statistical Report 
b. Police Body Camera Presentation 
 

Public Works Director’s Report       Informational 
a. March 2015 Operating Report 
 

Planning & Development Director’s Report – Dan Fleishman   Informational 
a. March 2015 Activities Report 
 

Library Director’s Report – Katinka Bryk      Informational 
a. March 2015 Activities 
 
PRESENTATIONS/COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
Recommended time for presentations is 10 minutes. 
Recommended time for comments from the public is 3 minutes. 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR  
 
BUSINESS FROM THE MAYOR      
a. Appointment of James Culver to the Planning Commission 
b. Reappointment of Chad Niegel to the Budget Committee 

 
BUSINESS FROM THE COUNCIL 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS – May 4, 2015 
a. City Council Goal Setting Work Session 

• 7:00 p.m. at the Stayton Public Library in the E.G. Siegmund Room 
 
ADJOURN 
 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 2 of 3 
April 20, 2015 



  

CALENDAR OF EVENTS 
APRIL 2015 

Monday April 20 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Monday April 27 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
MAY 2015 

Monday May 4 City Council Work Session – 
Goal Setting 7:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Tuesday May 5 Parks & Recreation Board 7:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Tuesday May 5 Budget Committee Meeting 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Thursday May 7 Budget Committee Meeting 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Friday May 8 Community Leaders Meeting 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Monday May 11 Budget Committee Meeting 
(if needed) 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Tuesday May 12 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Tuesday May 12 Public Safety Commission 6:00 p.m. City Hall Conference Room 

Monday May 18 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Wednesday May 20 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Monday May 25 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF MEMORIAL DAY 

Tuesday May 26 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
JUNE 2015 

Monday June 1 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Tuesday June 2 Parks & Recreation Board 7:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Tuesday June 9 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Friday June 12 Community Leaders Meeting 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Monday June 15 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Wednesday June 17 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Monday June 29 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

JULY 2015 
Friday July 3 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF INDEPENDENCE DAY 

Monday July 6 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Tuesday July 7 Parks & Recreation Board 7:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Friday July 10 Community Leaders Meeting 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Tuesday July 14 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Wednesday July 15 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Monday July 20 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Monday July 27 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

 

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 3 of 3 
April 20, 2015 



City of Stayton 
Administration • Finance 

362 N. Third Avenue • Stayton, OR 97383 
Phone: (503) 769-3425 • Fax (503) 769-1456 

 

City of Stayton, Marion County, Oregon 
 

PROCLAMATION 
 
This matter came before the City of Stayton Mayor and Council at its regularly scheduled 
meeting of April 20, 2015, to proclaim April as Child Abuse Prevention Month. 
 
WHEREAS, every child deserves to live in a safe, loving and caring family environment; 
 
WHEREAS, in 2014 there were 10,630 reported victims of child abuse and neglect in Oregon, of 
which 10 resulted in death.  Of those reported cases, 832 were victims in Marion County, 53 of 
which were from Stayton; 
 
WHEREAS, we endeavor to join together as individuals, organizations, and government agencies 
to prevent child abuse in our county by providing opportunities to educate, train, and support 
caregivers by raising awareness of relevant topics, including child development, basic-care 
skills, discipline strategies, and goal-setting for parents; and, 
 
WHEREAS, by strengthening families and providing safe, stable, and nurturing environments 
that are free from violence, abuse, and neglect, opportunities are created for children’s optimal 
growth and success, ensuring a secure future for our communities, where the needs of children 
are a priority and the needs of families are met. 
 
NOW THEREFORE,  the City of Stayton Mayor and Councilors asks everyone to join together 
in protecting our children, and do hereby proclaim April 2015, as 
 

“CHILD ABUSE PREVENTION MONTH” 
 

Dated at Stayton, Oregon, this 20th day of April, 2015. 
 
 

             
Henry A. Porter, Mayor 

 

POLICE 
386 N. THIRD AVENUE 
STAYTON, OR 97383 

(503) 769-3423 
 FAX (503) 769-7497 

PLANNING 
362 N. THIRD AVENUE 
STAYTON, OR 97383 

(503) 769-2998 
FAX (503) 767-2134 

PUBLIC WORKS 
362 N. THIRD AVENUE 
STAYTON, OR 97383 

(503) 769-2919 
FAX (503) 767-2134 

WASTEWATER 
950 JETTERS WAY 

STAYTON, OR 97383 
(503) 769-2810 

FAX (503) 769-7413 

LIBRARY 
515 N. FIRST AVENUE 
STAYTON, OR 97383 

(503) 769-3313 
FAX (503) 769-3218 

 



 
City of Stayton 

City Council Meeting Action Minutes 
March 16, 2015 

LOCATION:  STAYTON COMMUNITY CENTER, 400 W. VIRGINIA STREET, STAYTON 

Time Start: 7:00 P.M.     Time End:  7:32 P.M. 

COUNCIL MEETING ATTENDANCE LOG 

COUNCIL STAYTON STAFF  
Mayor Henry Porter Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder 
Councilor Priscilla Glidewell Keith Campbell, City Administrator 
Councilor Ralph Lewis Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning & Development 
Councilor Jennifer Niegel Katinka Bryk, Library Director 
Councilor Brian Quigley Rich Sebens, Police Chief 
Councilor Joe Usselman Christine Shaffer, Finance Director 
 David Rhoten, City Attorney (excused) 
 Kelli Stevens, Permit Clerk 

 
AGENDA ACTIONS 

REGULAR MEETING 
Announcements 
a. Additions to the Agenda 
b. Declaration of Ex Parte Contacts, Conflict of Interest, Bias, etc. 

 
None 
None 

Presentations / Comments from the Public 
a. Kelly Schreiber, Stayton/Sublimity Chamber of Commerce 

 
Ms. Schreiber distributed and then read a letter 
from the Stayton-Sublimity Chamber of Commerce 
Board and herself regarding the sign enforcement 
moratorium and thanking City staff for their 
attendance at a meeting in February.  

Consent Agenda 
a. February 23, 2015 City Council Goal Setting Session Minutes 
b. March 2, 2015 City Council Minutes 
c. 2015 OLCC Renewals 

 
Item “b” of the consent agenda listed an incorrect 
date. This was updated to March 2, 2015. 
  
Motion from Councilor Niegel, seconded by 
Councilor Quigley, to approve the Consent Agenda 
as modified. Motion passed 5:0. 

Public Hearing None 
 

Unfinished Business None 
 

New Business 
2015-2016 City Council Goals 
a. Staff Report – Alissa Angelo 
 
 
b. Council Deliberation 

 

 
 
Ms. Angelo briefly reviewed the staff report 
included in the Council packet. 
 
Council discussion on the goals as presented. It 
was requested that staff schedule another work 

 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes          Page 1 of 3 
March 16, 2015 



 
 

 
 

 
c. Council Decision 

 
2015 City Survey 
a. Staff Report – Keith Campbell & Emily Juengling 

 

session to further identify objectives and discuss 
the goals. Staff will gather several dates and 
coordinate to set up a work session. 
 
None at this time. 
 
 
Ms. Juengling reviewed the draft survey that will 
be included in the upcoming March utility bill. The 
City will take several different routes to get the 
word out in the community. Results will be shared 
with the Council once complete. 

Staff / Commission Reports 
Finance Director’s Report – Christine Shaffer 
a. February 2015 Monthly Finance Department Report 
 
Police Chief’s Report – Rich Sebens 
a. February 2015 Statistical Report 

 
 

 
b. Police Policies Manual 
 
 
Public Works Director’s Report 
a. February 2015 Operating Report 
 
Planning & Development Director’s Report – Dan Fleishman 
a. February 2015 Activities Report 
 
 
 
 
Library Director’s Report – Katinka Bryk 
a. February 2015 Activities  

 
 
No further discussion.  
 
 
Chief Sebens briefly reviewed the report included 
in the Council packet. An error was noted on the 
statistical report, which will be corrected. 
 
Chief Sebens updated the Council on the revised 
Police Policies Manual. 
 
 
No further discussion. 
 
 
Councilor Glidewell inquired about the abandoned 
swimming pool mentioned in the report. Mr. 
Fleishman explained there is an unoccupied home 
which has a swimming pool in the yard. 
 
 
Ms. Bryk has added volunteer hours to her report. 
She briefly updated the Council on recent 
happenings at the Library.  

Presentations / Comments From the Public None 
 

Business from the City Administrator The City Council will not have a regular Council 
meeting on Monday, April 6. Instead, a Council 
work session will be held to discuss the sign code. 
It will begin at 7:00 p.m. in the E.G. Siegmund 
Room at the Stayton Public Library. 

Business from the Mayor None  
 

Business from the Council None 
 
 

 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes          Page 2 of 3 
March 16, 2015 



 
Future Agenda Items – April 6, 2015 
a. City Council Work Session on Stayton’s Sign Code 

• 7:00 p.m. at the Stayton Public Library in the E.G. Siegmund Room 

APPROVED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL THIS 6TH DAY OF APRIL 2015, BY A ____ VOTE OF THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL. 

Date:    By:   
  Henry A. Porter, Mayor 
 
 
Date:   Attest:   

 Keith D. Campbell, City Administrator 
 
       
Date:  Transcribed by:        
   Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder 

 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes          Page 3 of 3 
March 16, 2015 



City of Stayton 
City Council Sign Code Work 

Session April 6, 2015 

LOCATION:  E.G. SIEGMUND ROOM AT THE STAYTON PUBLIC LIBRARY, 515 N. FIRST AVENUE 

Time Start: 7:00 P.M.     Time End:  9:04 P.M. 

COUNCIL MEETING ATTENDANCE LOG 

COUNCIL STAYTON STAFF 
Mayor Henry Porter Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder 
Councilor Priscilla Glidewell Keith Campbell, City Administrator (excused) 
Councilor Ralph Lewis Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning & Development 
Councilor Jennifer Niegel 
Councilor Brian Quigley 
Councilor Joe Usselman 

STAFF PRESENTATION BY DAN FLEISHMAN, DIRECTOR OF PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 
a. Mr. Fleishman reviewed the current Stayton Sign Code and recommended updates from staff.
COMMENTS FROM SIGN CODE COMMITTEE SPOKESPERSON 
a. Cari Sessums of the Covered Bridge Café and Kelly Schreiber of the Stayton/Sublimity Chamber of Commerce

reviewed recommended changes from the Sign Code Committee. The Sign Code Committee consists of local 
business owners.  

COUNCIL DISCUSSION 
a. After brief Council discussion, it was requested that another work session be scheduled. This will give the City

Council time to review the suggested changes and discuss further what they would like to recommend. 

APPROVED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL THIS 20TH DAY OF APRIL 2015, BY A ____ VOTE OF THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL. 

Date:    By: 
Henry A. Porter, Mayor 

Date: Attest: 
Keith D. Campbell, City Administrator 

Date: Transcribed by:  
Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder 

City Council Work Session Minutes – Sign Code Page 1 of 1 
April 6, 2015 



 

Stormwater SDC  Page 1 of 4  
April 20, 2015 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
 TO: Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
 FROM: Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning and Development 
 
 DATE: April 20, 2015 
 
 SUBJECT: Stormwater System Development Charge 
  
 
ISSUE 

The issue before the City Council is adoption of Resolution 925 establishing a stormwater System 
Development Charge (SDC).   

ENCLOSURES 
Resolution 925 Adopting the Stormwater SDC 
March 23, 2015 Letter from Santiam Water Control District 
April 10, 2015 Letter to Santiam Water Control District 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends adoption of Resolution 925 adopting the Stormwater SDC. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

In the spring of 2012 the City Council directed staff to revise the four existing System Development 
Charges – transportation, water, wastewater, and parks – to update cost estimates, to revise the 
list of projects to be completed, and adjust for projects completed.  During the course of the 
summer of 2014 staff presented proposed revisions to each of the SDCs to the City Council.  The 
Stormwater Master Plan calls for the adoption of an additional SDC, to finance stormwater 
improvements.  A draft methodology for a stormwater SDC was presented to the City Council in 
August 2014. 

The City Council held a public hearing on the proposed stormwater SDC on December 1, 2014.  
Following the public hearing the City Council indicated that the proposed SDC was too high.  
Though there was not a formal directive, it was implied that staff should return with a modified 
SDC that would reduce the charge.  Staff made modifications to the SDC methodology and 
returned the methodology to City Council on December 15.  The Santiam Water Control District 
appeared at the December 15 City Council meeting and requested the City Council postpone a 
decision because they had not had time to review the modifications and was concerned the 
revised proposed SDC was too low.  They requested that Council action be postponed until after 
the next Adaptive Management Group meeting to allow the City staff and District to discuss the 
SDC methodology. 



 

Stormwater SDC  Page 2 of 4  
April 20, 2015 

The AMG met in December and the stormwater SDC methodology was discussed.  City staff and 
the District manager conferred about the stormwater SDC methodology on January 5.  On each 
occasion, City staff requested the District submit in writing comments about the methodology 
with specific recommendations for changes.  The AMG met again on March 3 and the stormwater 
SDC was once again discussed, though no written comments had yet been received from the 
District.  On March 23 the attached letter was received from the District.  The City’s response to 
the letter is also attached. 

ANALYSIS 

The calculation of the stormwater SDC is based on the capital improvement projects contained in 
the adopted Stormwater Master Plan.  For each project, the Master Plan provides an estimate of 
the benefit of each project for existing development and the percentage the improvement will 
serve growth on unimproved property.  The SDC methodology updated the 2007 cost estimates by 
applying an inflation factor according to the changes in the Construction Cost Index to bring the 
estimates up to 2013 costs.  

The Master Plan categorized the improvement projects into four phases and a fifth category for 
future projects.  Recognizing that the current growth projections are substantially less than the 
those in the Master Plan, the original proposed methodology made some assumptions about the 
extent to which future projects would be completed within the 20-year time period to be financed 
under the proposed SDC, as do the methodologies for each of the City’s other SDCs. 

The original proposal before the City Council made the following assumptions about three of the 
future proposals.  These three assumptions reduced the amount of projects to be financed by 
SDCs by 48%. 

 Only 50% of the Phillips Property Area project would be constructed in the next 20 years 

 Only 25% of the future detention facilities would be constructed in the next 20 years 

 Only 30% of the pipeline oversizing reimbursements to developers would be expended in 
the next 20 years 

In response to the direction from the City Council, staff made the following changes in the 
calculation of the SDC: 

 The Wetlands Preservation project has been deferred until after 2035.  This was a pet 
project of a former mayor and past Public Works Director and therefore included in the 
Master Plan at that time.  It is now a very low priority for staff and it purpose been 
effectively accomplished by floodplain and wetlands regulations.  Removal of this project 
reduces the total to be raised by about $568,000. 

 The $1.55 million state grant was removed from the financing for the Shaff Road Detention 
Basin & Piping.  At the time the methodology was written, the City was planning on doing 
that project in the coming year.  However, the City was not able to find a willing seller of 
property that was affordable and the City will not likely to be constructing the project with 
those grant funds.  Applying the full cost of the Shaff Rd detention basin increases the 
amount to be financed by SDCs by $155,000 (10% of $1.55M). 



 

Stormwater SDC  Page 3 of 4  
April 20, 2015 

 Assumed that only half of the Shaff Road Basin Pipeline Improvements project will be 
completed in the next 20 years.  This reduces the cost to be financed by SDCs by about 
$107,000. 

 The 3rd & Jefferson to Library Detention Site project has been deferred until after 2035.  
The suitability of a detention basin in Community Center Park is questionable.  This reduces 
the cost to be financed by SDCs by about $126,000. 

 The Millstream Woods to Norpac SW Detention Site project has been deferred until after 
2035.  This reduces the cost to be financed by SDCs by about $236,000. 

 Applied some of the state grant towards the expenses of the Industrial Detention Site 
Improvements project.  This reduces the cost to be financed by SDCs by about $28,000. 

 Assumed that only half of the Fern Ridge Road Area project will be completed in the next 
20 years.  This reduces the cost to be financed by SDCs by about $346,000. 

 Applied some of the state grant towards the expenses of the Dozler Property Area project.  
This reduces the cost to be financed by SDCs by about $125,000. 

 The percentage of the Phillips Property Area project to be constructed in the next 20 years 
is reduced from 50% to 35%.  This reduces the cost to be financed by SDCs by about 
$300,000.  

 The percentage of the future detention facilities to be constructed in the next 20 years is 
reduced from 25% to 20%.  This reduces the cost to be financed by SDCs by about 
$200,000.  

 The percentage of pipeline oversizing reimbursements to developers to be expended in the 
next 20 years is reduced from 30% to 20%.  This reduces the cost to be financed by SDCs by 
about $170,000.  

The net result of the above changes is that the total amount of expenditures in the 20 years to be 
allocated to growth is reduced from $5,671,000 in the original proposal to $3,510,000.  This results 
in a reduction in the SDC per square foot of impervious area from $0.8387 to $0.5191.  The 
revisions mean the SDC for a single family home on a new street would be $2,606, compared to 
$4,210 as originally proposed. 

OPTIONS AND MOTIONS 

The City Council is presented with the following options. 

1. Approve the adoption of the revised Stormwater SDC. 

Move to approve Resolution 925 as presented. 

2. Approve the adoption of the revised Stormwater SDC with further modifications. 

Move to approve Resolution 925 with the following changes …. 

3. Direct Staff to further revise the Stormwater SDC methodology and bring the revisions to the 
Council for approval. 

Move to direct staff to revise Resolution 925 with the following changes …. and direct staff to 
bring the revised resolution(s) to the May 4 City Council meeting for consideration. 



 

Stormwater SDC  Page 4 of 4  
April 20, 2015 

4. Not establish a Stormwater SDC 

No motion is necessary. 



 

Resolution No. 925 Establishing Stormwater System Development Charges Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 925 

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE CITY OF STAYTON’S 
SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES FOR STORMWATER 

 
WHEREAS, Stayton Municipal Code (SMC) Chapter 13.12 provides for the 

establishment of Systems Development Charges (SDCs) upon completion of an analysis of the 
City’s current investment in its stormwater system and the projected capital improvements to be 
constructed and for the adoption of a methodology explaining how the SDCs are calculated;  

WHEREAS, the SMC Chapter 13.12.220 (2) specifies that such charges shall be set by 
separate Resolution of the Stayton City Council following a public hearing;  

WHEREAS, the Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) provide the framework for establishing 
an SDC, and for notification and public hearing of the City of Stayton’s intent to impose SDCs; 

WHEREAS, the Stayton City Council adopted a Stormwater Master Plan in 2009 which 
included capital improvement plans for the City’s stormwater system;  

WHEREAS, the 2009 Stormwater Master Plan includes an opinion of probable cost for 
the capital improvements of $25,939,600, expressed in 2007 dollars; 

WHEREAS, the 2009 Stormwater Master Plan includes an estimate of the percentage of 
the cost for each capital improvement that will benefit growth; 

WHEREAS, it is appropriate that new development pay for the cost of capital 
improvements to the stormwater system that benefit that development; 

WHEREAS, the City’s Planning and Development Department and Public Works 
Department worked together to develop a Stormwater SDC; 

WHEREAS, the City staff issued its report Stormwater System Development Charge 
Methodology, dated December 1, 2014, with the methodology; 

WHEREAS, the City Council held a public hearing on December 1, 2014 on the 
proposed Stormwater SDC methodology;  

WHEREAS, following the public hearing, the City Council requested staff revise the 
methodology to reduce the proposed Stormwater SDC; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the December 15, 2014 methodology 
and rates hereinafter specified and established are just, reasonable and necessary. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that: 

SECTION 1:  ESTABLISHMENT OF SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES 

In accordance with SMC Chapter 13.12, this Resolution establishes the methodology and 
provides the basis for the SDCs on those activities which create the demand for capital 
improvements used for stormwater. 

SECTION 2:  SCOPE 

The SDCs established by this Resolution are separate from, and in addition to, any other 
applicable taxes, fees, assessments, or charges, including but not limited to SDCs, which may be 
required by the City of Stayton or represent a condition of a land use or development approval. 



 

Resolution No. 925 Establishing Stormwater System Development Charges Page 2 of 2 

SECTION 3:  METHODOGY 

The methodology produced by the City of Stayton Planning and Development Department and 
Public Works Department to establish SDCs for Stormwater is described in the attached report 
and, by this reference, hereby made a part of this Resolution. 

SECTION 4: FEE 

The City establishes its Stormwater SDCs as follows: 

The Stormwater System Development Charge is based on an improvement fee of $0.5191 per 
square foot of new impervious surface.  For a single family detached dwelling, two averages of 
impervious surface shall be used.  For a new home on a street that was in existence at the time 
the Stormwater Master Plan was adopted, an average of 3,500 square feet of impervious surface 
shall be used.  For a new home on a street constructed after 2009, an average of 5,020 square feet 
of impervious surface shall be used.  For all other uses, the actual square footage of impervious 
surface shall be calculated based on the plans submitted with the building permit application. 

The Stormwater SDC collected in accordance with Chapter 13.12 of the Stayton Municipal Code 
shall be:  

 $1,817 for a detached single family dwelling on a street constructed in 2009 or earlier 
 $2,606 for a detached single family dwelling on a street constructed after 2009  
 $0.5191 per square foot of new impervious surface for all other land uses 

SECTION 5:  EFFECTIVE DATE 

This Resolution shall become effective upon its adoption by the Stayton City Council. 

SECTION 6:  REVIEW 

This Resolution shall be reviewed annually during the month of June and the rates amended as 
appropriate for the next fiscal year.  Consideration shall be given to the rate of inflation for 
construction as reported in the Engineering News Record, published by the McGraw-Hill 
companies, as the 20-City Average Construction Cost Index for the period June of the preceding 
year through May of the current year. 

ADOPTED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL this 20th day of April, 2015. 

Signed: _________________, 2015.  CITY OF STAYTON 
 
 By: _____________________________________ 
 Henry Porter, Mayor  
 
 
Signed: _________________, 2015. Attest: ___________________________________ 
 Keith D Campbell, City Administrator 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_________________________________ 
David A. Rhoten, City Attorney 



 

 

 

 

 

City of Stayton 
 

S T O R M W A T E R  S Y S T E M D E V E L O P M E N T C H A R G E 
 

December 15, 2014 Draft for City Council Approval 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by the City of Stayton 
Public Works and Planning & Development Departments 

 
 



 
 

  
 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
SUMMARY ................................................................................................................................. 1 

INTRODUCTION ....................................................................................................................... 2 

STORMWATER SDC METHODOLOGY ................................................................................. 2 

 Improvement Fee .............................................................................................................. 2 

ANNUAL UPDATES FOR INFLATION ................................................................................... 6 

 

 

LIST OF TABLES 
 

Table 1 -  Recommended Stormwater System Capital Improvements ....................................... 3 

Table 2 - Planned Stormwater System Capital Improvements – Cost Basis for 
Improvement Fee ........................................................................................................ 4 

Table 3 - Calculation of Improvement Fee ................................................................................ 5 
 



 
 
 
 
2014 Stayton Stormwater Systems Development Charge Methodology Page - 1 

 

SUMMARY 

The City of Stayton adopted a Stormwater Master Plan prepared by Keller Associates in May 2009.  The 
Stormwater Master Plan recommends the City correct deficiencies in the existing stormwater system and also 
recommends the City invest in improvements to the stormwater collection facilities to serve the needs of the 
City that will result from future residential, commercial and industrial growth in Stayton’s Urban Growth 
Boundary.  

Prior to 2014 the City did not have a stormwater utility, as management and operation of the stormwater 
system was incorporated into the wastewater fund.  In the spring of 2014 the City established a stormwater 
utility, instituting a monthly stormwater utility fee and reducing the wastewater fee.  Without a stormwater 
utility, the City has not tracked its investments in its stormwater system.  Without an accurate assessment of 
the City’s past investments in its stormwater system, it is not possible to calculate a reimbursement fee.  
Therefore, the Stormwater SDC consists solely of an improvement fee, to help finance future investments in 
the stormwater system. 

The City adopted a Comprehensive Plan Update in 2013 that incorporated new population projections through 
2030.  At the time the Stormwater Master Plan was developed, the City assumed Stayton would grow at a rate 
of 3.35% per year.  Projects were identified and prioritized based on this assumed growth rate.  Due to the Great 
Recession, housing growth in Oregon slowed dramatically.  In 2009 Marion County prepared an updated 
coordinated 20-year population forecast for the unincorporated rural areas and the 20 cities in Marion County.  
The City and County planning departments revised Stayton’s growth rate projections downward and adopted a 
1.7% growth rate for the City of Stayton. This population forecast has been adopted in the Stayton 
Comprehensive Plan. 

In 2013 the City entered into an agreement with the Santiam Water Control District (SWCD) in order to resolve 
litigation.  As part of the agreement, the City will be making capital investments in the stormwater system 
beyond those called for in the Master Plan. 

The City has reassessed the timing for various stormwater system improvements listed in the Stormwater 
Master Plan (Plan).   Overall, the Plan identifies almost $26 million in capital improvements, to replace 
existing facilities, and to expand stormwater system facilities to accommodate future growth.   This report uses 
the capital improvements list, the agreement with SWCD, and other stormwater system data to develop the 
City's Stormwater SDC. The Plan estimated costs in 2007 dollars.  These cost estimates have been adjusted 
for inflation by using the McGraw Hill Engineering News Record 20-City Construction Cost Index to develop 
cost estimates in 2013 dollars.  Cost estimates for projects not in the Plan are in 2013 dollars. 

There is only one project in the list of proposed capital improvements that has been partially completed since 
the adoption of the Master Plan.  The City has constructed a stormwater detention basin at the intersection of 
N 10th Ave and E Santiam St.  This is a portion of the detention facilities for this sub-basin called for in the 
Master Plan.  The projected costs for the remainder of this project have been adjusted to account for the 
portion already completed.  Also, projects which are not likely to be constructed before 2035 have been 
removed from the list of proposed capital improvements and are not included in the SDC. 
 



 
 
 
 
2014 Stayton Stormwater Systems Development Charge Methodology Page - 2 

 

INTRODUCTION 

The City of Stayton staff developed the stormwater system development charge methodology in the summer 
of 2014.  The adopted Stormwater Master Plan identifies almost $26 million in capital improvements in 2007 
dollars. 

 This report includes two elements: 
1. Stormwater Improvement Fee methodology 
2. An annual updating process to index the SDC to reflect construction cost inflation 

STORMWATER SDC METHODOLOGY 
 
IMPROVEMENT FEE 

 

The improvement fee is based on capital improvements to be built to collect stormwater from future growth in 
the community. The Stormwater Master Plan recommends the City construct stormwater system capital 
improvements to correct deficiencies in existing facilities and to expand the stormwater system capacity to serve 
anticipated growth within the Stayton Urban Growth Boundary. 

In 2013, the City Council adopted a Comprehensive Plan Update that incorporates new population projections 
through 2030.  At the time the City of Stayton Stormwater Master Plan was developed, the City assumed that 
Stayton would grow at a rate of 3.35% per year and the City’s population would reach 19,200 when the Urban 
Growth Boundary was built out in 2032.  Keller Associates estimated future stormwater demands to serve the 
expected rapid population growth.  Projects were developed and prioritized based on this assumed growth rate.    

Due to the Great Recession, housing growth in Oregon slowed dramatically.  In 2009 Marion County prepared 
an updated coordinated 20-year population forecast for the unincorporated rural areas and the 20 cities in 
Marion County.  The City and County planning departments adopted a 1.7% growth rate for the City of Stayton.  
This population forecast has been adopted in the Stayton Comprehensive Plan. 

Stayton’s population in July 2013 was 7,685 persons.  Using the 1.7% annual growth rate for Stayton, the 
population is projected to reach 11,135 by 2035 and 14,100 in 2049 at UGB build out.  

Table 1 lists all of the recommended capital improvements listed in the Stormwater Master Plan.  The 
Master Plan included a cost estimate, prepared in 2007.  These cost estimates have been updated to adjust for 
inflation by using the Engineering News Record Construction Cost Index.  The costs have been adjusted by 
using the Construction Cost Index for the end of 2013.  The estimated construction cost is $31,328,010 in 
2013 dollars.  The City expects to receive a $1.5 million grant from the State of Oregon to assist in the 
construction of various stormwater improvements.  For purposes of calculating the SDC, the estimated cost 
of several projects have been reduced by the expected contribution of this grant.  Of the $31 million total 
cost, $10,898,394of the project costs are allocated to growth, after reductions for state grant funds. 



 
 
 
 
2014 Stayton Stormwater Systems Development Charge Methodology Page - 3 

 
Table 1  Recommended Stormwater System Capital Improvements, Stormwater Master Plan 

  Master Plan Inflation 
 Estimated Adjustment Allocation to Growth 
Project Description 2007$ 2013$ % 2013$ 

Wetlands Preservation 792,000 946,598 60% 567,959 
Shaff Road Detention Basin & Piping 1,754,700 2,097,217 10% 209,722 
10th Ave Detention Basin & Piping 1,011,000 908,347 15% 136,252 
Industrial Detention Site Improvements* 95,000 113,544 25% 0 
Shaff Road Basin Pipeline Improvements 3,575,500 4,273,438 5% 213,672 
10th Avenue Pipeline Improvements 572,600 684,372 15% 102,656 
Norpac NE Detention Site 620,800 741,980 0% 0 
5 Additional Manhole Monitoring Equipment 96,700 115,576 0% 0 
Fir to Regis through Regis HS Parking Lot 358,800 428,838 5% 21,442 
Evergreen Ave to Norpac Detention Site 575,600 687,957 5% 34,398 
3rd & Jefferson to Library Detention Site 2,115,000 2,527,848 5% 126,392 
Millstream Woods to Norpac SW Detention Site 1,975,400 2,360,998 10% 236,100 
Sylvan Meadows Subdivision 72,100 86,174 0% 0 
Gardner Road-Regis High School 637,800 762,299 5% 38,115 
Wedgewood Place 736,600 880,384 0% 0 
Western Ave 732,400 875,364 0% 0 
Library Improvements 49,500 59,162 0% 0 
1st Avenue 122,300 146,173 0% 0 
Washington Street Area 216,600 258,880 42% 108,730 
North Peach Street 82,500 98,604 50% 49,302 
Pacific Court 349,600 417,842 0% 0 
Fern Ridge Street Area 1,701,400 2,033,513  34% 691,395 
Dozler Property Area** 740,800 885,404 48% 304,994 
Phillips Property Area 1,991,900 2,380,719 87% 2,071,225 
Larch Avenue 130,200 155,615 0% 0 
Detention Facilities 3,402,000 4,066,070 98% 3,984,749 
Pipeline Upsize Costs 1,430,800 1,710,092 100% 1,710,092 
SWCD Ditch Automation  230,000 24% 55,200  
Salem Ditch Expansion  150,000 24% 36,000  
Power Canal Water Quality Improvements  45,000 0% 0 
Stormwater Master Plan Update  200,000 100% 200,000 
 25,939,600 31,328,010  10,898,394 

* Assumes cost to be paid by state grant 
** Assumes $250,000 of cost paid by state grant 

In addition to the projects that are included in the Stormwater Master Plan, there are three projects in Table 1 
that were not included in the Master Plan but are commitments made by the City for improvements to the 
stormwater system in the City’s agreement with Santiam Water Control District to resolve the District’s 
litigation.  The City has committed to providing funding for the automation of the District’s headgates and other 
controls in order to minimize the impacts of the City’s stormwater on the District facilities, has committed to 
providing funding for the expansion of the Salem Ditch north of Shaff Road, and has committed to the 
installation of water quality improvements to the City’s facilities that discharge to the Main Canal.  The cost 
estimates for these three projects are in 2013 dollars.   

In addition, future updates to the City’s Stormwater Master Plan have been included in Table 1. 



 
 
 
 
2014 Stayton Stormwater Systems Development Charge Methodology Page - 4 

 
Each project was evaluated to determine whether or not it is needed to correct an existing deficiency or 
if the project is partially or entirely intended to benefit new growth.  The fourth column shows the 
allocation of each project’s cost to growth (and, implicitly to current users). 

1. Projects with no benefit for future growth:  Ten of the projects in Table 1 are not needed to 
serve future growth.  These projects must be built regardless of growth to resolve existing 
problems.  All of these costs will be borne by stormwater uti l i ty ratepayers.  For 
example, the Stormwater Master Plan notes that many areas of the City experience flooding 
due to undersized storm drain pipes and calls for the installation of larger or parallel storm 
drain pipes.  Projects such as these have no benefit for future development (0%) and 
therefore are not included in the final column.  None of these projects’ costs are 
included in the calculation of the stormwater improvement fee.  

2. Projects with proportional benefit to existing users and future growth:  Some projects 
in Table 1 will benefit some existing users, but will also serve future growth.  Projects 
that partially benefit current users and future growth are pro-rated based on the 
proportionate benefit to each.  The percentage assigned to each project is based on the 
proportional benefit received by new growth.  Several factors were considered: (1) 
Does the project increase the capacity of the overall stormwater system and enable the 
City to meet anticipated stormwater demands? and/or (2) Does a collection system 
project serve a partially developed or a vacant, developable area within the Stayton 
UGB?  Based on the analysis, the percentages of projects that benefit development 
range from 5 to 100%.  

3. Future Projects (Not included in the Improvement Fee Calculation):  As mentioned 
above, the Stormwater Master Plan assumed the City would continue to grow at a faster 
rate than is now projected.  This means that many of the future improvement projects 
on the Master Plan’s Capital Improvements List may not be necessary within the next 
20-year period.  It is projected that the following projects will not likely be completed 
within the 20-year period: 

 The Wetlands Preservation project has been deferred until after 2035.  This is 
now a very low priority for the City and its purpose been effectively 
accomplished by floodplain and wetlands regulations. 

 The Shaff Road Basin Pipeline Improvements project is assumed to be only half 
completed in the next 20 years. 

 The 3rd & Jefferson to Library Detention Site project is likely to be deferred 
until after 2035. 

 The Millstream Woods to Norpac SW Detention Site project has been deferred 
until after 2035. 

 The Fern Ridge Road Area project is assumed to be 50% completed in the next 
20 years. 

 The Phillips Property Area project is assumed to be 35% completed in the next 
20 years. 

 The future detention facilities are assumed to be 20% constructed in the next 20 
years.  

 The percentage of pipeline oversizing reimbursements to developers to be 
expended in the next 20 years is assumed to be only 20% of the total cost.  



 
 
 
 
2014 Stayton Stormwater Systems Development Charge Methodology Page - 5 

 
During the next Stormwater Master Plan update these projects should be re-evaluated to 
determine if they are needed, should be dropped from the plan or should be modified.  
At that time, any needed projects should be included in the calculation of an updated 
stormwater improvement fee. 

Based on this analysis, Table 2 identifies $3,509,679 in stormwater system improvement projects to be 
completed in the next twenty years that are assigned to growth and used in the calculation for the stormwater 
improvement fee. 

Table 2  Planned Stormwater System Capital Improvements Cost Basis for Improvement Fee  

  ENR Allocation 
 Inflation Adjustment to Growth To be Completed in 
Project Description 2013 $ % 2013 $ 2014-2034 2035+ 

Wetlands Preservation 946,598  60% 567,959   567,959 
Shaff Road Detention Basin & Piping 2,097,217  10% 209,722  209,722   
10th Ave Detention Basin & Piping 908,347  15% 136,252  136,252   
Industrial Detention Site Improvements 113,544  25% 28,386  28,386   
Shaff Road Basin Pipeline Improvements 4,273,438  5% 213,672  106,836  106,836 
10th Avenue Pipeline Improvements 684,372  15% 102,656  102,656   
Fir to Regis through Regis HS Parking Lot 428,838  5% 21,442  21,442   
Evergreen Ave to Norpac Detention Site 687,957  5% 34,398  34,398   
3rd & Jefferson to Library Detention Site 2,527,848  5% 126,392   126,392 
Millstream Woods to Norpac SW Detention Site 2,360,998  10% 236,100   236,100 
Gardner Road-Regis High School 762,299  5% 38,115  38,115   
Washington Street Area 258,880  42% 108,730  108,730   
North Peach Street 98,604  50% 49,302  49,302   
Fern Ridge Street Area 2,033,513  34% 691,395  345,697 345,697 
Dozler Property Area 885,404  48% 304,994  304,994   
Phillips Property Area 2,380,719  87% 2,071,225  621,368  1,449,858  
Detention Facilities 4,066,070  98% 3,984,749  796,950  3,187,799  
Pipeline Upsize Costs 1,710,092 100% 1,710,092 342,018 1,368,074 
SWCD Ditch Automation 230,000  24% 55,200  55,200   
Salem Ditch Expansion 150,000  24% 36,000  36,000   
Stormwater Master Plan Update 200,000  100% 200,000  200,000   
 31,328,010   10,898,394  3,509,679  7,388,715 

The City’s 2013 population is estimated at 7,685 by the Portland State University, Population Research Center.  
The City’s Comprehensive Plan, using the coordinated population projection adopted by Marion County, 
assumes the City will grow at an annual average rate of 1.7%.  Applying this growth rate to the estimated 2013 
population results in projected population of 11,135 in 2035.  With an average household size of 2.7, this 
increase in population correlates to an additional 1,230 housing units in the next 20 years.  The Comprehensive 
Plan projects that 85%, or 1,040, of the new homes will be single family detached units and duplexes and the 
remainder will be multifamily units. 

The City estimates that each new housing unit results in the creation of 5,020 square feet of impervious surface.  
If a lot has an average of 80 feet of street frontage and is on a street with a 38-foot pavement width, then the 
street and a 5-foot sidewalk accounts for 1,920 square feet of paving.  A 25-foot long, 20-foot wide driveway is 
500 square feet.  The City reviewed a March 2014 aerial photo in the City’s Geographic System and calculated 
the roof area of the 38 new single family dwellings that were built since 2010 and appeared in the aerial photo.  
The new homes had a median roof area of 2,683 square feet.  Using an average of 2,600 square feet brings the 
total impervious surface per single family dwelling to 5,020 square feet. 



 
 
 
 
2014 Stayton Stormwater Systems Development Charge Methodology Page - 6 

 
Over the 20-year period, 1,040 new homes will result in 5,220,800 square feet of new impervious surface from 
single family residential construction. 

As part of developing the stormwater utility fee, the City has previously estimated that there is currently 
10,280,455 square feet of impervious surface in the city from non-residential and multi-family uses.  The City 
has reviewed the Land Use Files and determined the amount of new impervious surface approved for 
development since 1990.  There has been an annual average of 70,000 square feet of new impervious surface 
approved in non-residential and multi-family development during that time period.  If the City continues to see 
an average of 70,000 square feet of new impervious surface from non-residential and multi-family development 
over the next 20 years, there will be a total of 1.54 million square feet of new impervious surface added from 
these developments. 

Table 3 presents the calculation of the stormwater system development charge based on the total cost of 
improvement projects allocated to growth in the next twenty years from Table 2 and the total projected 
impervious surface from new development during that period of time. 

Based on the calculations in Table 3 the stormwater SDC for a single family dwelling will be $2,935 for a home 
on an existing street and $4,210 for a home on a new street and the stormwater SDC for multi-family and non-
residential construction will be $0.8387 per square foot of impervious surface.  Impervious surface will include 
the area of all roofs, sidewalks, parking areas, driveways, patios and any other area that is not vegetated. 

Table 3  Calculation of Improvement Fee  

Total Improvement Costs to be Financed with SDCs $3,509,679 

New square footage of impervious surface from 
single family dwellings, 2015-2035 5,220,800 

New square footage of impervious surface from 
non-residential and multi-family, 2015-2035 1,540,000 

Total new square footage of impervious surface 2015-2035 6,760,800 

Cost per square foot of impervious surface $0.5191 
 
Average impervious surface per new single family dwelling 

on an existing street 3,500 
Stormwater SDC per single family dwelling on an existing street $1,817 

Average impervious surface per new single family dwelling 
on a new street 5,020 

Stormwater SDC per single family dwelling on a new street $2,606 

Stormwater SDC for multi-family and non-residential 
development (per sq ft of impervious surface) $0. 5191 

 

Fee Reduction 

A building permit application may be granted a 90% reduction in the calculated stormwater system development 
charge fee when the development’s storm water system retains all storm water on-site without discharge to the 
City’s storm water system.  To qualify for an SDC reduction, a single family home or duplex must be located in 
a subdivision for which the entire subdivision qualifies for the reduction.  To qualify for an SDC reduction, the 
applicant must demonstrate: 

 i. that there will be the total retention of storm water from within the applicant’s property with no 
effective discharge to City storm drainage facilities; 



 
 
 
 
2014 Stayton Stormwater Systems Development Charge Methodology Page - 7 

 
 ii. through hydrologic/hydraulic analysis that the site receives no storm water service from City storm 

drainage facilities; and 

 iii. proof that the petitioner’s on-site storm drainage facilities are constructed and will be maintained to 
City standards. 

ANNUAL UPDATES FOR INFLATION 

ORS 223.304 (7) provides that, 

"A change in the amount of a reimbursement fee or an improvement fee is not a modification of 
the system development charge if the change in amount is based on the periodic application of 
an adopted specific cost index or on a modification to any of the factors related to rate that are 
incorporated in the established methodology." 

For the purposes of periodically adjusting the stormwater SDC, the City will determine annually the increase in 
the 20-City Average Construction Cost Index (CCI) published in the weekly periodical ENR published by 
McGraw Hill, Inc.  This publisher's construction (and building) cost index is widely accepted in the engineering 
and construction industry. ENR updates the CCI monthly and provides annual summaries in the July edition. 

The formula for updating the SDC each year is as follows: 

  SDC current year = (SDC last year) X (CCI current year) / CCl last year 

Variables:   

CCI current year = Construction Cost Index for the current year 
CCI last year = Construction Cost Index for the last year the SDCs were updated 
SDC current year = the SDC updated by the CCI 
SDC last year = the SDC to be updated 

It is recommended that the City Council review the SDC charges annually and make adjustments effective on 
July 1st. 

An initial Council review may take place between January and March after the ENR index is available for the 
prior calendar year.  In reviewing the SDC, the City Council may consider changes to the proposed project list, 
the ENR index change for the prior year, economic indicators for the Mid-Willamette Valley, current economic 
conditions in Stayton and the potential impact a change in the SDC fees may have on proposed development in 
the City.   

 



Santiam Water Control District 
 

284 E. Water St.     Stayton OR,  97383    
Phone (503) 769-2669  Fax (503) 769-5995 

 
          March 23, 2015 
Mr. Keith Campbell 
City Administrator 
City of Stayton 
362 N. Third Avenue 
Stayton, OR 97383 
 
Re:  Stormwater System Development Charges 
 
The Board of Directors of the District and I wish to express our continuing, deep concern with the fact 
that the Stayton City Council has failed to adopt the Storm Water System Development Charge (SWSDC) 
ordinance that was vetted by both parties in our mutual AMG meetings and presented to the Council on 
December 1, 2014. Moreover, the City Council now appears poised to pass a revised, plainly inadequate 
SWSDC involving a different methodology, shifted priorities, and reduced funding, all without the AMG 
discussion or other consultation with the District on this critical issue. The development and consideration 
of a revised methodology and proposed ordinance without District input is plainly inconsistent with the 
terms of the Memorandum of Understanding between the City and the District.   

This letter will provide a brief summary of the City's agreement with the District and the key elements at 
issue here. We will then offer specific, constructive suggestions on how we see possible resolution of 
current matter. 

The Memorandum of Understanding.   

On February 24th, 2014, the Santiam Water Control District (SWCD or District) and City of Stayton (City 
or Stayton) entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU). The MOU settled a pending lawsuit 
regarding the unauthorized discharge of stormwater into District canals. As required by the MOU, the 
City and the District formed an Adaptive Management Group (AMG) to facilitate planning and 
communication on key issues related to policy and funding of projects. The funding and communications 
commitments were material factors in the District’s approval of the MOU and its willingness to settle the 
lawsuit. 

The Adaptive Management Group. 

Because of the long history of poor communication between the District and the City, the AMG was 
designed to provide a forum for the District to participate in the development of City policies that affect 
the District’s canals and the quantity and quality of water flowing into them. The AMG was intended to 
serve as the fundamental line of communication between the parties for implementation of the projects 
and policies laid out in the MOU. 

Specific City projects and commitments were incorporated into the MOU for the purpose of remedying 
past and future problems involving City discharges.  The Stormwater Master Plan (SWMP or Plan) 



referred to in the MOU contains a list of specific capital improvement projects that would achieve 
measurable reductions in the quantity of storm water discharges, and improve water quality. The SWMP 
adopted by the City thus provides the District a clear blueprint by which to measure progress in 
addressing stormwater issues.  

Because of the need for collaboration on these projects, the AMG was deemed important by both sides, 
not only for effective implementation of the MOU, but also to monitor progress on MOU commitments.  

The City made a true commitment to fund and implement the approved SWMP along with additional 
specific items called out in the MOU. It was agreed in the MOU that the City would adopt a fee and 
"System Development Charge" as key components necessary to fund the City's MOU obligations. 

The System Development Charge. 

The MOU acknowledges the City's regulatory need to implement a fee for existing development, and a 
Stormwater System Development Charge for new development. The combination of both the fee and 
SWDC is intended to produce monies sufficient to implement the 26 million dollar SWMP within its 20 
year planning horizon. The District understands updates to the Plan may be needed, but the current 
version as approved by the City and referred to in the MOU is the base to which any changes will need to 
be compared. But since it signed the MOU, the City has wavered in its commitment to fund an SWSCD. 
The District’s perspective is outlined in the following summary of events. 

A Brief Chronology of Events 

The August 20, 2014 AMG meeting. 

At the August 20th AMG meeting, City staff presented to the District a methodology and proposal for a 
SWSDC that would fund the capital projects or percentage of them related to new development, based on 
the approved SWMP. The City provided an explanation of adjustments intended to compensate for 
updated population growth projections, and inflation of capital construction costs. The District reviewed 
the information and was supportive of the proposed SWSDC. In our view, this is how the AMG was 
intended to work.  

The December 1, 2014 City Council meeting.  

On December 1, 2014, the August AMG methodology and a proposed ordinance to adopt the proposed 
SWSDC were presented to City Council by staff. The Council failed to adopt the SWSDC ordinance. The 
Council apparently had no issue with the methodology, but it was apparent that it didn’t like the outcome: 
the SWSDC was too high. This conclusion arose principally from the sole testimony of a representative of 
the Home Builders Association. The testimony was based upon growth projections and comparisons of 
the proposed $4,210 single-family home charge with other communities’ charges. It apparently was not 
informed by the City's commitments under the MOU. 

The December 15, 2014 City Council meeting. 

On December 15th, without notice, discussion, or concurrence with the District, a new methodology was 
presented to the Council to address its cost concerns. The amended methodology incorporated several 
changes to the capital improvement list. The changes included deferring or eliminating several projects 



that are included in the adopted SWMP. Of significant concern is the deferral of one of the highest 
priority MOU projects, the Shaff road project, which received over 1.5 million dollars in state grant 
funding earmarked expressly for that project. The deferral of this and other projects achieved the goal of 
reducing the proposed SWSDC, but did so by ignoring the requirements of the MOU. The City failed to 
analyze how the changes will achieve the same water quality and quantity benefits as the original SWMP 
projects. The proposed ordinance and substantially lower SWSDC in combination with the approved fee 
for existing development is inadequate to fund the adopted SWMP and is inconsistent with the 
requirements of the MOU.  

Specific suggestions    

The City has urged the District to articulate specific comments and suggestions regarding the SWSDC  
proposals.  

The District’s concerns relate both to process and substance. Our process concerns are noted above, and 
relate to the City’s end run around the AMG to revise the SWSDC proposal that had been approved last 
August at the AMG meeting. It relates to the City’s willingness to discard that SWSDC, and to take 
action upon an entirely different SWSDC worked out in private without the District’s knowledge, which 
is at odds with the City's MOU contract with the District. 

The District requests that the City take action on and approve the SWSDC as presented to the District and 
agreed upon with the City in the August AMG. 

As to substantive plan issues, the District, in the spirit of cooperation, submits the following specific 
concerns and comments regarding the amended methodology:  

• Detention basins are the primary strategy to address water quantity and quality issues. If 
basins are unlikely to be built, alternative methods should be developed that achieve at 
least equivalent water quality and quantity benefits. The costs of all basins should remain 
and SWSDC calculated on the approved SWMP list until agreeable alternatives are 
developed. 

• The District is willing to review a funding plan that articulates how the City’s proposed 
reduced SWSDC and Stormwater fee can achieve construction of the capital 
improvement list. We would highlight that only one project on the SWMP capital 
improvement list has only been partially funded since it’s the SWMP’s approval in 2009. 
Stormwater improvements must be funded or they are a dead letter.  

• The District is highly concerned with removing the $1.55 million state grant from the 
Shaff Road project, effectively postponing the priority 1A project. Nearly 50% of the 
City stormwater discharges here. If the City is unwilling to implement the project, a list 
of alternative projects should be proposed that would achieve at least equivalent water 
quality and quantity benefits. In the interim, the cost estimate for the project should be 
increased to current cost estimates in development charge calculations. Any alternatives 
considered should achieve at a minimum (based on SWMP standards):  

o Reduction in peak flows of 44 cfs in Salem ditch. 



o 90% of the reduction should be derived from existing development and 10% 
from new growth. 

o Water quality benefits at least equivalent to that expected of a detention basin 
reducing sediments and other pollutants.  

• The District  does not agree with deferring the library and Norpac detention projects 
until after 2035. Any proposed alternatives should achieve at a minimum (again, based 
on SWMP standards): 

o Reduction in peak flows of 17 cfs in Salem ditch. 

o 90% of the reduction should be derived from existing development and 10% 
from new growth. 

o Water quality benefits at least equivalent to that expected of a detention basin 
reducing sediments and other pollutants.  

•  The Shaff road project and state grant funds would serve to complete a project that 
would address primarily (90%) existing development. The project was a top priority in 
the SWMP and also the MOU discussions. Additionally, water quality testing suggests 
that it may be a large contributor of pollutants. The project should remain a top priority 
and appropriate costs to complete it should be included. The District 's does not agree 
with shifting the grant monies to projects with lower priority or dissimilar results, 
namely Dozler and Industrial basin projects. 

• The District does not agree with the strategy of reducing the percentage of future 
stormwater projects to be constructed in the next 20 years. The City must clearly 
demonstrate that development will or can be excluded from those areas, or that 
stormwater projects will be constructed prior to development occurring. We do not agree 
with deferring the funding of stormwater projects while allowing development to occur 
effectively increasing storm discharges until projects are completed. 

• Any changes to the projects listed in the SWMP will require an analysis of and 
corresponding change in the City’s public works design standards. As an example, 
projects in substitution of detention projects that would improve water quality and 
quantity, may require stricter standards or lower exemption thresholds in those areas.  

Conclusion 

We are deeply concerned with the lack of conviction by the City to adequately fund and implement its 
approved SWMP through a SWSDC, consistent with the MOU. The approved SWMP includes over 26 
million dollars of improvements (per the August 20th methodology) needed in the next 20 years, yet the 
council is funding implementation at a rate that falls extremely short and leads to a shortage of dollars and 
further postponement of projects.  



We urge the City to move forward in completing its 1A priority Shaff Road Project without further delay.  
The District believes the City erred in failing to adopt the December 1, 2014 SWSDC and also in moving 
forward with an amendment without receiving input by the District. The District has repeatedly expressed 
its disagreement with the revised methodology in our AMG meetings and brings forth the issue for City 
Councilors to rectify.  

We are hopeful the situation can be amicably resolved but if not we are prepared to resolve the situation 
utilizing the dispute resolution process contained in the MOU. We strongly urge the Council immediately 
to act to remedy the disagreement by approving the AMG-vetted SWSDC presented at the December 1st 
City Council hearing and moving forward with the Shaff Road project without further delays.    

Thank you for your consideration of these concerns. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Brent Stevenson  

Manager, Santiam Water Control District 

 

 

CC:  

Mayor Henry Porter 

President David Dalke 















 
 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
  

M E M O R A N D U M 
    

TO:   Mayor Hank Porter and the Stayton City Council 
   City Administrator Keith Campbell 
 
FROM:  Lance Ludwick, Public Works Director 
 
DATE:  April 20, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 931, a Resolution to Apply for an Oregon 

Parks and Recreation Department Local Government 
Grant for replacement of the pedestrian footbridge in 
Pioneer Park 

  
 
ISSUE 
 
The issue before the City Council is whether or not to approve Resolution No. 931, 
authorizing the City Administrator to apply for and sign an Oregon Parks and Recreation 
Department (OPRD) Local Government Grant application for replacement of the 
pedestrian footbridge in Pioneer Park. Resolution No. 931 shall become effective upon 
adoption by the Stayton City Council. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends the City Council approve Resolution No. 931, authorizing the City 
Administrator to apply for and sign an OPRD grant application. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
The City of Stayton has an existing 5’ wide x 60’ wooden footbridge over the Salem 
Ditch connecting Pioneer Park with the City’s 55-acre, Wilderness Park. The bridge 
supports are 30-40 years old and the bridge decking is 20 years old. The City has several 
safety concerns: (1) Side rails, deck and log stringers are deteriorated and (2) the 
footbridge flexes too much, (3) In June 2012 a core test of the Douglas fir log support 
stringers revealed moisture, fungal disease and rot. The cable tensioning system on the 
underside of the log stringers is loose and worn; therefore the bridge has been closed to 
the public indefinitely. The City concludes the bridge needs to be replaced immediately. 

 



  
The Pioneer Parks Master Plan update (2012) identifies the footbridge replacement as the 
City’s highest priority trail improvement project due to safety and public access issues.  
 
In order for the City to submit the application, the OPRD Local Government Grant 
application process requires the governing body to approve a Resolution authorizing the 
Grant application. 
 
 
PARKS BOARD RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The City of Stayton Parks and Recreation Board are in full support of the Local 
Government Grant for replacement of the pedestrian footbridge in Pioneer Park. 
 
OPTION(S) 
 

1. The City Council could choose to approve Resolution No. 931. 
 
2. The City Council could choose to deny Resolution No. 931. 

 
MOTION(S) 
 

1. Move to approve Resolution No. 931.   
 

Adoption will authorize the City Administrator to apply for and sign the 
Oregon Parks and Recreation Local Government Grant application for 
replacement of the pedestrian footbridge in Pioneer Park. 

 
2. Move to deny Resolution No. 931. 

 
3. Move to modify staff’s recommendation. 

   



RESOLUTION NO. 931 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF STAYTON TO APPLY FOR A 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT GRANT FROM THE OREGON PARKS AND RECREATION 

DEPARTMENT FOR REPLACEMENT OF THE PEDESTRIAN FOOTBRIDGE IN 
PIONEER PARK. 

  
 WHEREAS, the Oregon Parks and Recreation Department (OPRD) is accepting applications for 
the Local Government Grant Program; 
 

WHEREAS, the Stayton Park and Recreation Board has reviewed the need for a new footbridge 
in Pioneer Park;  

 
WHEREAS, the Stayton Park and Recreation Board recommends the City apply for a Local 

Government grant from the OPRD. 
 
WHEREAS, the OPRD grant program requires a 40 percent match and the City of Stayton desires 

to participate in this matching grant program to the greatest extent possible; 
 
WHEREAS, one of the requirements of the OPRD grant application process is that the 

application must include a resolution from the governing body authorizing the grant application. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that  
 
Section 1. The City of Stayton, through its City Administrator, shall apply for a Local Government 
Grant from the Oregon Parks and Recreation Department for a grant to pay for the replacement of the 
pedestrian footbridge in Pioneer Park. 
 
Section 2. This Resolution shall become effective upon adoption by the Stayton City Council. 
 
ADOPTED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL this 20th day of April, 2015. 
 
      CITY OF STAYTON 
 
 
Date:_______________, 2015   By:                                                                      

Hank Porter, Mayor 
 
 
Date:                               , 2015   Attest:                                                                 

Keith Campbell, City Administrator 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
____________________________ 
David A. Rhoten, City Attorney 

  
Resolution No. 931 - Authorization to Apply for Grant       Page 1 of 1 
from the Oregon Parks and Recreation for replacement of the pedestrian footbridge in Pioneer Park 





















 
CITY OF STAYTON 

 
M E M O R A N D U M 

 
 

 
TO:  Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM: Rich Sebens, Chief of Police 
 
DATE:  April 20, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: Staff Report 
  
     
 
Below you will see the stats for the Police Department for the month of March 2015.  
 
 March 

2015 
Year to Date 

2015 
March 
2014 

Year to Date 
2014 

     
Police Activity 771 2199 691 1945 
Investigated Incidents 311 851 320 858 
Citations/Warning 318 836 122 339 
Traffic Accidents 6 19 7 22 
Juvenile Abuse 0 8 2 7 
Arrests 52 111 68 154 
Reserve Volunteer Hrs. 293.75 1028.67 210 721.75 
Citizen Volunteer Hrs. 9 20 23 61 
Peer Court Referrals: 11 17 1 8 
     
 

 
Monthly Staff Report  Page 1 of 1  
April 20, 2015 







 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:   Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  Kelli Stevens, Permit Clerk 
 
DATE:   April 20, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:  Public Works Monthly Operating Report for March 2015 
      
KEY ACTIVITIES STATUS 
 
• WWTP Facility Effluent flows: 46.60 million gallons were treated during March. The 

highest flow was 2.20 million gallons on March 24th and the lowest flow 
was 1.05 million gallons on March 8th. The average flow was 1.50 million 
gallons. Total rainfall for March was 5.49 inches.  

 
• WTP  Highest production day was 1,866,000 on March 7th, 2015. 
 
• Water System Replaced 5 services to a larger water line on East Virginia. Added a fire 

hydrant at Second and East Virginia. Reconnected an existing water line 
at Second Avenue to the larger line on East Virginia. Abandoned a water 
line and removed a valve at Third and East Virginia. Replaced two dead 
meters and replaced one radio reader.  
 

• Streets   Swept 140 curb miles and removed approximately 60 cubic yards of 
material. 
 

 Parks  Volunteers: Community Service – 0 hours, Volunteer – 0 hours, Life skills 
High School Students – 120 hours. Total = 120 hours. 

 
• Building Permits   

            Permit Type Issued SDC’s Paid 
New Single Family Dwelling 2 $10,115.00 
Residential Building Addition/Alter/Other 1 0 
Commercial Building Addition/Alter/Other 0 0 
Electrical 0 0 
Mechanical  1 0 
Plumbing 0 0 

TOTAL 4 $10,115.00 
One (1) Residential SDC = $10,115.00 + $670.00 for Mill Creek SDC 

 
Public Works Monthly Operating Report  Page 1 
April 20, 2015 



 

Planning and Development Monthly Report, March 2015 Page 1 of 1 
 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
 TO: Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
 FROM: Dan Fleishman, Planning and Development Director 
 
 DATE: April 20, 2015 
 
 SUBJECT: Report of Activities for March, 2015 
  
     

Enforcement Activity Highlights 

Sent letter to repeat tall grass offenders reminding them of City requirements and informing 
them that this coming season there would be no warning letter. 

Planning & Development Activity Summary 

Working with Public Works Department staff, improvements to the Geographic Information 
System continued 
 



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:   Mayor Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  Katinka Bryk- Library Director 
 
DATE:   April 20, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:  March Library report 
  
 
The Stayton Public Library Board is reviewing policies and bylaws, updating them to comply 
with new Oregon Library Association standards for public libraries. 
 
The Stayton Public Library Foundation is busy planning their signature fundraising event, the 
Santiam Canyon Father Daughter Ball. All proceeds go to support the outreach storyteller 
program. 
 
The Friends of the Library continue to support library programs and collection development- 
thank you! This month they paid for 12 book clubs sets for youth and six for adults. 
 
Casle Portner, youth services librarian, hosts two book clubs for youth, Book Bobs and Random 
Readers, which meet the first and last Monday of each month. In March they read Twenty and 
Ten and Pleasing the Ghost. Including the teen programs, the library youth services team served 
just under 500 area youth. 
 
Lisa Krigbaum, outreach storyteller, visited 30 classrooms, including the teen parent class at the 
high school, teaching literacy skills through reading, singing and movement to 440 children. 
 
The library has been hosting the free AARP tax help each Saturday. They will continue to 
provide tax assistance each Saturday through April 11th. 
 
The adult book club read Counting Coup by Larry Colton, as he was the featured author in 
March.  Our Youth Services librarian,  
  
The Oregon Author Series continues to be popular. We recently hosted Nikeia Daniels, a 
resident of Sublimity and a self-published author. 
 Upcoming authors are: 
 Oregon Poet Laureate Peter Sears and local artist Paul Toews- April 30th. This event is a 

collaboration with the North Santiam Arts Association. 
 Jane Kirkpatrick—May 7th 
 Tina Connolly — June 4th 

 
Monthly Library Report  Page 1 of 1  
April 20, 2015 



TOTAL CHECKOUTS 12,392 9,879 9,097 10,402 9,145 n/a 11,716 10,563 11,081 136,454 84,275

Self check out 2,646 2,313 2,126 2,468 2,143 n/a n/a n/a n/a Not Tracked 11,696

Holds  filled 718 686 695 620 579 n/a n/a n/a n/a Not Tracked 3,298

Check-ins 11,787 9,649 8,652 9,283 8,613 n/a n/a n/a n/a Not Tracked 47,984

Library2Go (ebooks +) 634 671 698 658 662 n/a n/a 683 n/a 6,378 4,006

Non-resident cards             $773.00 $455.00 $232.00 $485.00 $360.00 $285.00 $1,067.00 $724.00 $440.00 $9,921.00 $4,821.00

Fines: overdue & lost books $719.00 $218.00 $453.00 $979.26 $2,588.00 $151.75 $1,396.00 $512.00 $3,003.98 $16,612.37 $10,020.99

Room fees                        $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $462.50 $275.00 $2,046.00 $979.00 $0.00 $100.00 $4,129.50 $3,862.50

TOTAL $30,662.87 $18,704.49

In-Person, by phone and computer 
help

769 611 355 391 488 407 527 452 563 8,042 4,563

NEW PATRON CARDS 109 70 83 112 74 98 109 104 117 240 876

INTERNET USE 1,584 1,424 1,235 1,483 1,195 1,189 1,436 1,373 1,605 18,625 12,524

Children/teens 349 178 264 399 338 322 490 485 447 4,743 3,272

Adults 169 49 158 206 171 171 253 285 345 2,575 1,807

Outreach n/a n/a n/a 487 536 441 515 521 440 6,405 2,940

TOTAL 13,723 8,019

MEETING ROOM ATTENDANCE 1,017 573 673 920 331 775 951 969 1,093 10,942 7,302

PATRON VISITS 8,588 7,660 6,212 8,059 6,717 6,156 7,248 6,978 7,514 88,449 65,132

VOLUNTEER HOURS 214 152 90 185 138 165 135 153 247 Not Tracked 1,479

2013-14 FY 2014-15 YTDMay JuneNov. Dec. March AprilJan. Feb.

OTHER CIRCULATION SERVICES

REFERENCE QUESTIONS

INCOME RECEIVED

PROGRAM ATTENDANCE

2014-2015 Monthly Library  Statistics

July August Sept. Oct.














	Resolution 925 - Unfinished Business Final.pdf
	Staff Rpt -  Stormwater SDC Adoption 042015
	Stormwater SDC Resolution 04202015
	Stormwater SDC Resolution 04202015
	Stormwater SDC Methodology 12152014

	SWCD Letter 032315
	April 10th Response

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

